ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 26, 2010
8:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senator Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggins

Senat or Donal d O son

Senator Gary Stevens

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l menbers present
COMM TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATION OF CANDI DATES FOR THE ALASKA STATE BOARD OF
EDUCATI ON AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 110( HSS)
"An Act relating to the practice and |icensing of
psychol ogi sts. "

- MOVED CSHB 110(HSS) OUT OF COWM TTEE

COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 360( EDC)

"An Act relating to the provision of information regarding a
student by a school district to the Departnment of Mlitary and
Veterans' Affairs, Al aska Chall enge Youth Acadeny.™

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 110

SHORT TITLE: PSYCHOLOG STS' LI CENSI NG & PRACTI CE
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HERRON

02/ 04/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 04/ 09 (H) HSS, L&C
03/ 19/ 09 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAP| TOL 106

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- March 26, 2010



03/ 19/ 09 (H) Heard & Held

03/ 19/ 09 (H) M NUTE( HSS)

01/ 28/ 10 (H) HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 28/ 10 (H) Moved CSHB 110(HSS) CQut of Committee

01/ 28/ 10 (H) M NUTE( HSS)

01/ 29/ 10 (H) HSS RPT CS(HSS) 6DP 1NR

01/ 29/ 10 (H) DP: HOLMES, T.WLSON, SEATON, LYNN
Cl SSNA, HERRON

01/ 29/ 10 (H NR  KELLER

02/ 17/ 10 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 17/ 10 (H Moved CSHB 110(HSS) Qut of Conmittee

02/ 17/ 10 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 19/ 10 (H) L&C RPT CS(HSS) 2DP 3NR

02/ 19/ 10 (H) DP: HOLMES, T.W LSON

02/ 19/ 10 (H) NR: BUCH, NEUMAN, OLSON

02/ 24/ 10 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

02/ 24/ 10 (H VERSI ON:  CSHB 110( HSS)

02/ 26/ 10 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 26/ 10 (S EDC, L&C

03/ 19/ 10 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

03/ 19/ 10 (S -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 26/ 10 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

JAMES MERRI NER, Site Adm nistrator

I nterior Distance Education of Al aska (| DEA)

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented professional background and
answered questions on appointnent to the Alaska State Board of
Education and Early Devel opnent.

ESTHER COX, Chair

State Board of Education

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented professional background and
answered questions on appointnent to the Alaska State Board of
Educati on and Early Devel oprent.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 110.

DR. PHI LLI P BAKER, Legislative Chair

Al aska Psychol ogi cal Associ ation
Anchor age, AK

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- March 26, 2010



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported HB 110.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:01:45 AM

COCHAIR JOE THOVAS called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:01 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Huggins, O son, Stevens, Davis, Myer and
Thonas.

Confirmations for Al aska State Board of Education and Early
Devel oprent

8:.02:18 AM

CO CHAI R THOVAS announced that the first order of business would
be to hear from perspective appointees to the Al aska State Board
of Education and Early Devel opnent.

8:03: 06 AM

JAMES MERRINER, Site Admnistrator, Interior D stance Education
of Alaska (IDEA), introduced hinmself and said that he has
dedicated his professional life to the youth of Al aska and is
honored to be considered for the board. He said he is excited
for where they are as a state and what is happening nationally
on the educational |andscape as well. He also nentioned that he
is very supportive about the Governor's Performance Schol arship
(GPS) bill.

He said he believes he brings a lot to the table in ternms of his
experiences. He attended public and private schools and was hone
schooled for a tinme as a student. And, as an adult, has worked
in all of those arenas, and as a professional educator. He feels
strongly about who he is as an educator and the experience that
he brings.

SENATOR STEVENS asked how he thinks the state can inprove the
rate of graduation from coll ege.

MR. MERRI NER answered that he thinks the GPS could help a |ot.
Wth the national standards, he said, he is still westling with
certain aspects, but he sees the potential benefits for the
state's students to be conpared nationally. He believes that, in
terms of the high school exit exam they need to stay where they
are in regards to accountability for students for right now

8:07:18 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- March 26, 2010



SENATOR HUGE NS said that he has been hearing about what Newark
and New York City are doing in their educational system and
their focus on the quality of teachers. He asked what M.
Merriner's thoughts are on this topic and the decision on which
t eachers stay and which ones go during tinme of fund shortages.

MR. MERRI NER answered that the quality of teachers is essential.
In his job experience as a site admnistrator he is |ooking for
soneone who not only has the qualifications but who can connect
with students on a personal |evel. There are obviously struggles
and chal | enges when you have a tenured teacher who doesn't neet
those qualifications. He said he is excited for sonme of the talk
on a national |evel on how to address these issues.

SENATOR HUGGE NS referred to conversations with people who are
home schooled or participate in distance education he
understands it is relative easy for themto receive the rigorous
curriculumthat is necessary to participate in the GPS.

MR. MERRI NER answered that is true.

SENATOR OLSON asked why he left Kipnuk in the mddle of the
year.

MR. MERRI NER said that Governor Parnell called him out of the
blue right after her was elected as |I|ieutenant governor and
asked himto be his chief of staff.

SENATOR STEVENS sai d, while he would have voted against it if he
had been present, this commttee noved a bill to renove the high
school exit exam He asked M. Merriner to clarify the school
board's position and his position on this.

MR. MERRI NER answered that the board is not in favor of doing
away with the exit exam because they don't feel there is a good
repl acenent to keep students accountabl e.

CO CHAIR THOVAS said that those on the commttee who wi shed to
repeal it did so because they felt that the current test was not
a real neasure of high school education

SENATOR DAVI S asked what other neasures M. Merriner would |ike
to see in place before getting rid of the exit exam

MR. MERRINER replied that he sinply nmeant that the exit exam

should stay in place until they see an alternative to it that is
vi abl e and can hold students to a standard.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- March 26, 2010



8:14:47 AM

ESTHER COX, Chair, Al aska State Board of Education, said she has
done just about everything a secondary adm nistrator can do in
the Anchorage school district. She has served as chair of the
state board for the last three years and thinks the board has
done sone good things.

She said when Larry LeDoux canme on as Comm ssioner of the
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED), one of the
first things he said is that the state doesn't really have an
educational plan. That began discussions on issues that are
being discussed at the l|egislature such as graduation rates,
career and technical schools, teacher quality, etc. As far as
teacher quality goes, one thing they are doing is requiring
substanti ve wor k within a teacher's di sci pline for
recertification. Al so, another point of discussion for the board
is to require an induction tinme that would be required for
teachers new to Al aska. This program would give a real insight
into Al askan culture and teaching Al askan chil dren.

The other thing that is happening, she said, is that they have a
teacher nmentoring program that is wldly successful. These
mentors spend face to face tine with teachers, particularly in
rural Alaska, to inprove the quality of teachers throughout the
state. They are also working on career and technical education
delivery systens. Kids learn in different ways and what they are
doing in this state is offering options to accomodate different
| earni ng styl es.

Personally, she said, when they really get serious, they also
need to address the school cal endar and schedul e.

8:19:57 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS said the comrittee has a bill that addresses the
facilities for charter schools. He asked her to ensure that the
board works with themto facilitate that program

M5. COX replied that she saw that bill recently and confirned
that facilities are very much an issue.

SENATOR STEVENS said he has noticed how little high school
students know about government and he is shocked at tinmes by the
guestions they ask. He asked how they better educate their
children in those areas.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- March 26, 2010



M5. COX answered that in high school a governnent class is
required for graduation. They also have an Al aska history class
that is the board has mandated. Civics is not required but
students do take history through eighth grade and certain
aspects of history that are required in high school. She said
she doesn't really have an answer for that question. She thinks
that, maybe, students take their citizenship for granted. Kids
who get involved and see government in action tend to understand
it better. Perhaps, she said, this should be |ooked at on a
curricul um basi s.

SENATOR DAVI S asked Ms. Cox, in regards to the high school exit
exam about the tinme when the board had concern about it and had
requested the conmmssioner to look into alternatives or the
possibility of elimnating it. She wondered why she had a
concern about the examat that tinme and no | onger has one.

M5. COX responded that she isn't necessarily a supporter of the
exit exam However, she is in favor of accountability. This exam
is a mninal conpetency exam but it does show sone
accountability. She doesn't think this is the tinme to change it
because the educational |andscape is changing so rapidly. No
Child Left Behind (NCLB) is going to change radically; the
national adm nistration wants everyone to sign on to common
core, etc. So until they decide what should be used to replace

this accountability neasure, she isn't willing to do away wth
t he exam
She added that she has heartburn over the term "mnimal". There

is alot of talk about a rigorous curriculumand it is one thing
she really likes about the GPS. But she believes that the exit
exam shoul d be kept until there is a better replacenent.

SENATOR DAVI S said she appreciates the answer, but wants to know
was why the board was concerned then and not now.

M5. COX responded that she does not recall the board saying they
need to do away with the exit exam The board has said that they
need to be looking for a better alternative. She said many
states are going towards exit exams. She repeated that she is
not aware of any tine that the board recommended doing away wth
it.

SENATOR DAVIS said she received a neno saying they wanted the
exam | ooked at because they felt sonething should replace it.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- March 26, 2010



CO CHAIR THOVAS conmented that they have been educating people
in that state for 50 years and Conmm ssioner LeDoux's statenent
that the state doesn't have a good plan in place, is comentary
that there needs to be a change. He feels that the board should
address not only teaching recertification, but of replacing the
exit exam wth sonething nore relevant within the next 18
nont hs.

8. 30: 52 AM
SENATOR OLSON asked for M. Cox's thoughts on WrkKeys replacing
the current exit exam

M5. COX answered that she likes WrkKeys. She isn't sure whether
it is appropriate for both college and career assessnent. Wat
she likes about the test is that it gives different |levels and
is a good counseling tool.

SENATOR OLSON said, |ooking at her resunme, he sees little rura
education experience on her resune conpared to sone other
candi dates, including M. Merriner.

M5. COX responded that he is correct; she does not have any
rural experience. But, she believes her urban experience also
needs to be included on the board. Qxhers can bring the rura
perspective, but the urban perspective needs to be there as
wel | .

8:33:12 AM
CO-CHAIR THOVAS thanked the candidates and said the committee
will pass their names on to the next commttee.

CO-CHAIR MEYER npbved that Ms. Cox and M. Merriner's nanes be
nmoved on to the next commttee of referral for consideration.

SENATOR STEVENS conmented that he hopes they can develop nore
nmeani ngf ul di al og between the board and the commttee.

CO- CHAIR THOVAS said that there being no objection, the notion
carri ed.

HB 110- PSYCHOLOG STS' LI CENSI NG & PRACTI CE

8:34:33 AM
CO- CHAIR THOVAS announced consideration of HB 110 [CSHB 110
(HSS) 26-LS0474\R was before the commttee].

8:34:56 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- March 26, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON, sponsor of HB 110, said HB 110 hopes to
clarify the current statute regarding the |licensing and
regul ation of psychologists in Alaska. It aligns the exans that
are available and clarifies who can practice psychology and the

associated practices wth it. School physi ol ogi sts  and
governnment enployees <can practice outside of the current
st at ut es. It does not Iimt the work of nental health service

providers in Al aska.
SENATOR OLSON asked if the department supports this.
REPRESENTATI VE HARRI S replied yes.

CO CHAIR THOVAS commented that there are a variety of letters of
support acconpanying the bill.

SENATOR DAVI S said she is in support of HB 110.

8:37:26 AM

DR. PH LLIP BAKER, Legislative Chair, Al aska Psychological
Associ ation, said they cosponsored this bill with the Psychol ogy
Licensing Board and the purpose was to clarify some of the
wording in the original psychology license in 1963 which tried
to identify who could call thenselves psychol ogi sts and provide
psychol ogi cal services. To have a license at the time, because
it was the only nental health license on the books, the
definition had to be fairly broad to allow people working in
government agencies and other nental health organizations to be
licensed. Time has passed and four other types of |icenses have
been put on the books that clarify other nental health services
that do not need to be provided by doctor |evel psychol ogists.
It is tinme to clean up the legislation because as it stands,
people who are not trained psychologists can legally specify
t henmsel ves as such. They are trying to close this | oophole. They
do not intend to exclude anybody from providing nental health
services, only that they could not advertise thenselves as
| i censed psychol ogi st s.

8:40: 42 AM

SENATOR STEVENS said he doesn't like the idea that soneone who
hasn't passed the exam could call thenselves a psychol ogist. He
asked Dr. Baker to provide sone statistics on who are the
i ndi viduals who are failing this exam

DR. BAKER answered that the pass rate on the first try is about

65 to 70 percent, so it is fairly rigorous. He took the test
twi ce before he passed. He does not have specifics on how nmany

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- March 26, 2010



people in the state have or have not passed the exam It is
designed to ensure that people who are not qualified cannot
treat or evaluate our citizens. He agreed that this is very
perti nent.

SENATOR HUGGE NS brought the commttee's attention to page 2,
section 2. He asked if people who have been practicing will have
to take the examor will they receive grandfather rights.

DR. BAKER said those in governnent service have rather strict
regulations and the requirenent is they have to have a
psychol ogy license. That may not always have been the case, but
it certainly is now Their main concern, he explained, is that
t hey have had several instances in which persons applied to work
as psychologists in rural settings specifically in the state and
it turns out they were not |icensed.

SENATOR HUGEA NS clarified that what he wants to know is if
sonmeone has been working for several years in the field, do they
have to take this test.

DR. BAKER answered that it would depend upon what type of
services they are offering. If they are offering services that
are restricted to psychol ogists, such as specific psychol ogi ca
tests, then they nust take the exam

SENATOR STEVENS asked if this is a standardized test that is
used by ot her states.

DR. BAKER replied that it is a national standardi zed exam

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON returned to Senator Huggins' question and
said that the answer is "yes."

8:46: 53 AM
SENATOR OLSON asked what the thinking is behind the six nonths
bet ween the retaking of the exam

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON replied that he did not know.

DR. BAKER answered that this is fromthe original wording of the
license statute from 1963 and was inplenented to give people six
months to study before re-taking it. Q her i censing
requi renents do not stipulate a specific tinme interval. It is up
to the board.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -9- March 26, 2010



SENATOR OLSON said when he was taking the nedical exam he
wondered what relevance it had to do wth his practice of
medi ci ne. He wondered how nmuch rel evance this exam has.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if there was a limt for how many tines an
i ndi vi dual can retake the exam

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON replied that they can keep trying.

DR. BAKER responded that after an individual tries to take the

exam two or three tines, the board will wusually encourage the
i ndividual to get further training before petitioning to take it
again. He pointed out that, in addition to the national exam

applicants generally have to pass a state exam on statutes and
regul ations that pertain to the state.

SENATOR STEVENS asked for confirmation that there is a governing
body overseei ng these exam appli cants.

DR. BAKER confirned that the national testing organization
collects and scores all the exam nations and then reports to the
Psychol ogi cal State Board. It is then the scope of work of the
licensing board to discuss the matter with applicants who did
not pass. The exam covers about eight different areas of hunman
devel opment, research, and practice and treatnent of varying
probl ems in human devel opnent.

SENATOR OLSON asked how often they see nal practi ce cases agai nst
the |licensee.

DR. BAKER said that would be nore appropriately directed to the
Psychol ogy Licensing Board, but he thinks they have seen two or
three cases since 1963. The process is that conplaints conme to
the licensing examner and, if the conplaint has nmerit, it is
referred to the nmenber of that |icensing board and then to the
Attorney Ceneral's office if necessary.

8:54:14 AM
CO CHAI R MEYER noved to adopt the proposed CSHB 110( HSS) Version
R, as the comittee's working docunment. There being no

obj ection, the notion carried.

8:55:47 AM

CO- CHAIR MEYER noved to report the CS for HB 110, version R
from comnmttee with attached fiscal note(s) wth individual
recommendati ons. There being no objection, CSHB 110(HSS) noved
fromthe Senate Health and Social Services Standing Commttee.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 10- March 26, 2010



8:57: 05 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
CO CHAIR THOVAS adjourned the Senate Health and Social Services
Standing Conmttee neeting at 8:57 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- March 26, 2010



